
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session. 

Please ask for: 
Marie Lowe 

 
 
Please Note Time 

26 September 2017 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENT CONSULTATION FORUM to be held on Monday 2 October 2017 at 
7.00 pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Executive Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   DECLARATION OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ personal and prejudicial interests in respect of 
items on this Agenda. 
 

2.   DEVELOPMENT CONSULTATION FORUMS (Pages 3 - 8) 
 

 Guidance for Members, Developers and the Public. 
 

3.   FORMER SHREDDED WHEAT FACTORY, BROADWATER ROAD, WELWYN 
GARDEN CITY, AL8 6UN (Pages 9 - 14) 
 

(a)    Background to the Proposal  
 

 Planning Officers will present the Report of the Executive Director (Public 
Protection, Planning and Governance) providing background information, 
including planning history and planning policy. 

Public Document Pack



 

(b)    Presentation by the Developer  
 

 The Developer or Agent will present details of the proposed master plan. 
 

(c)    Observations by Invited Speakers  
 

 Any invited speakers, including local parish or town Councillors, will have the 
opportunity to speak and raise issues, observations and comments. 
 

(d)    Questions by Members of the Council  
 

 Members of the Council may ask questions of the developer. 
 

(e)    Summary by the Chairman  
 

 The Chairman will give a short summary of the main points raised during the 
Forum. 
 

 
Circulation: All Members of the Welwyn Hatfield Council 
 Executive Board 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Marie Lowe   
Governance Services Unit on 01707 357443, email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


 

  

Development Consultation Forums 
 

Guidance for Developers and Public 

 

What are Development Consultation Forums? 

The Council is committed to improving community involvement in the planning process.  
In December 2013, the Council adopted its 'Statement of Community Involvement’ 
(SCI) which sets out how the Council will involve the community in plan-making and 
when considering planning applications (major, minor, other, listed building and 
conservation area) at both pre and submission stages of a planning application. 

The Council also reviewed its formalised pre-application advice protocols in September 
2014, for all types of developments and future applications with the aim of improving 
Councillor and stakeholder involvement in the pre application process, and providing 
greater understanding for developers of community expectations of development within 
the Borough. 

The Council also holds a ‘Consultation Forum’ for large schemes with the aim of 
improving Councillor and public involvement in the pre-application process, and 
providing greater understanding of potential large developments within the Borough. 

This document should be read in conjunction with the SCI Guidance and the 
Development Consultation Forum would be part of a wider SCI process where 
developers engage with the local community.   

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

  

What are Development Consultation Forums? 

The Development Consultation Forum is a meeting held in public, where a developer is 
able to explain proposals directly to Councillors and the public at an early stage, prior to 
a decision being made on a planning application, about a development site.  The 
process is designed to assist the developer to deal properly with important issues and 
to reduce delay and frustration on everyone’s part in the formal planning process.   

The process was established in the hope that it would improve the planning process in 
connection with schemes that would have a wider impact on the local community within 
the Borough. 

It is important that the presentation takes place at an early pre-decision stage in the 
development process so that developers may rethink certain aspects of their proposals 
or commission further survey work to explain their proposals. 

 What is the Development Consultation Forum’s purpose? 

Its prime purpose is to help identify issues that a proposal, which is considered by 
Members, may need to address. In particular the discussion will: 

Enable the developer to explain development proposals directly to Councillors 
and the public at an early stage  
Identify any issues that may be considered in any formal application  
Inform Councillors and the public of a development  proposal at an early stage in 
the pre application process  
Inform officer pre-application discussions with the developer to enable the 
developer to shape an application to address community issues 

 Which type of developments will be discussed at the Development Consultation 
Forum? 

The following types of development schemes, which are still at pre-application and pre-
decision stage, will be considered: 

Proposed large-scale developments which include significant social, community, 
health or education facilities, or where early public discussion of issues would be 
useful 
Proposed developments of 50 units or more of housing 
Proposed developments of 10,000 or more square metres of industrial, 
commercial or retail floorspace 

 
Which type of developments will the Development Consultation Forum not 
consider? 
 

Page 4



 

  

Straightforward major applications 
Proposals for minor or householder planning application such as those to alter or 
extend houses 
Proposals to erect advertisements 
Amendments to proposals which have already been discussed at the 
Development Consultation Forum 

 
What does the Development Consultation Forum not do? 
 

It is not a decision-making meeting 
Its purpose is to answer questions and raise issues.  If a formal application is 
submitted in the future the Council will decide the application on its merits 
following normal planning rules. A decision on a planning application will not be 
made at the Development Consultation Forum 
It does not replace the legal duty to publicise certain types of planning 
applications that they receive.  Welwyn Hatfield’s current consultation standards 
and practices for publicising applications will not change 
Welwyn Hatfield Councillors and officers who attend will not express any 
opinions of the merits of the proposal 
Members of the Committee have to keep an open mind until a formal decision on 
an application is made.  If they express views about the proposals they will not 
be able to take part in any future decision.  Any statements are made “without 
prejudice” 
It cannot require the developer to make changes to the proposals as a result of 
the discussions at the meeting 

 
When will a Development Consultation Forum be held? 

The Development Management Service Manager will identify development schemes 
suitable for presentation to Members as soon as possible during pre-application 
discussions with developers.  Agreement will be sought from the Chair of Development 
Management Committee and the Executive Member for Planning, Housing and 
Community to determine whether the proposal should be presented.  The developer 
would be asked whether and when in the discussions he would like to take advantage 
of the Development Consultation Forum. 

Development Consultation Forums will be held as needed and dates of meetings will 
be published on the Council’s Website or by contacting the Committee Section on 
01707 357443. 
 

Will all pre-decision matters be referred to the Development Consultation Forum? 

No.  Only those proposals that are significant developments likely to raise issues 
sensitive to the wider community will be accepted for discussion. 

If proposals are sensitive to the wider community do they have to be subject to 
the pre-application process and the Development Consultation Forum? 

Page 5



 

  

No.  Whilst developers will be encouraged to use this opportunity when appropriate it is 
not mandatory and it will depend upon their co-operation and willingness to take part. 

Is the Development Consultation Forum a substitute for the Development 
Management Committee?  

No.  The Development Management Committee will still need to consider an 
application based on the facts, issues and advice and nothing said at the discussion 
will prejudice that consideration. 

 Who can attend the Development Consultation Forum? 

Anyone can attend and listen, however, only those invited to speak by the Chairman 
will be able to raise issues at the Development Consultation Forum. 

 Who will be able to speak? 

A person can address the Development Consultation Forum as:- 
 

Category: The developer or their agent 
Category: The local Parish or Town Council or their authorised representative 
Category: Any Member of the Council.   
Category: Members of the public who are invited to speak by the Chairman of the 
Forum. 
 

 

How will the public be aware of a Development Consultation Forum? 

Local residents will be notified of the Development Consultation Forum by the 
placement of a site notice adjacent to the site, through notification to the Town/Parish 
Council and through any further involvement undertaken in connection with the 
Statement of Community Involvement by the developer or Local Planning Authority. 

What if I want to speak but I am not able to speak? 

You are welcome to attend the meeting, listen to the presentation from the developer 
and views of others.  You may then wish to make written comments to officers who will 
forward any comments received to developers, and take account of any points made in 
any subsequent discussions about the proposal, if you are not able to ask a question 
on the evening.  In any event, the Development Consultation Forum will not affect any 
rights to make representations when a formal planning application is submitted. 

 Will the Committee negotiate a proposal with a developer? 

No.  The purpose of the Development Consultation Forum is to ask questions about 
and raise issues that participants consider need to be addressed by the developer prior 
to submitting a planning application. 

  

Page 6



 

  

How will I know about the Development Consultation Forum? 

Arrangements will normally be made about 2-3 weeks in advance of the discussion to 
notify local residents, by site notice and via the Town/Parish Council of the date and 
time of the Development Consultation Forum.  Approximately 1 week prior to the 
meeting, the report, prepared by Officer’s, will be available to view on the Council’s 
website.  The report will describe the site, the proposal, detail any relevant history, 
policy considerations and report any representations or consultees responses that 
might have been received.   

 What happens at the Development Consultation Forum? 

The Chair will introduce the Development Consultation Forum explain who is going to 
speak, the order of speakers and the rules that the meeting will follow.  There will be no 
discussion on the merits of the proposal.  The order of events will normally be as 
follows: 

(a) The Development Management Service Manager or 
Planning Officer will provide a background to the 
proposal (including planning history and planning 
policies) 

Up to 5 minutes 

 

(b) The developer/agent will present the proposal.  The 
developer will be expected to supply the 
presentation.  The presentation will include the 
background to the development, the process by 
which the design has been created and key issues 
that have been identified. 

Up to 15 minutes 

(c) Councillor members of the Development 
Consultation Forum may ask questions of the 
developer.  The developer has an opportunity to 
respond. 

(d) Invited Speakers (including local residents) will then 
have an opportunity to speak & raise any issues, 
observations and comments.  The developer has an 
opportunity to respond. 

Usually up to 30 
minutes 

Up to 15 minutes  

(e) The Chair summarises the main points raised 
during the Development Consultation Forum. 

Up to 5 minutes 

(f) The Chair will close the Development Consultation 
Forum.  

 

 

 What if third parties are disruptive to the process? 

It is important to understand and capture any genuine objections someone may have to 
proposals.  However anyone who becomes disruptive will only damage the process for 
others.  Disruptive behaviour can include shouting and interrupting speakers and 
thereby not allowing points to be made.  Such people are unlikely to be permitted to 

Page 7



 

  

speak at any future Development Consultation Forum event, but will be restricted to an 
observation role in the public gallery or may be advised that they are not welcome at 
any future meeting.  Equally anyone who becomes disruptive will be instructed to leave. 

 What happens at the end of the Development Consultation Forum meeting? 

The main points raised by the Development Consultation Forum will be recorded and 
clarified as the meeting progresses.  At the end of the meeting the Chair will summarise 
the main issues. This will help the developer decide how, and if, he wishes to proceed 
with the proposal. 

 What happens after a Development Consultation Forum meeting? 

A summary of the key points made at the meeting will be: 

Posted on the Welwyn Hatfield website  
Placed on the case file and/or filed with the application if and when it is received 
Passed to the developer for consideration during further pre-application 
discussions with officers 
Feedback from the developer’s presentation at the Development Consultation 
Forum should be submitted with the planning application as part of details 
submitted in connection with the Statement of Community Involvement 

 
If you would like to let you know if and when we receive a valid planning application for 
the site, please tick the attendance sheet at the meeting and fill in your contact details 
or sign up to the Council’s ‘Alert-it’ service.  Alert-it enables you to sign up for 
automated email alerts on planning applications within a distance of 500 metres from 
where you live 
 

  

Page 8



Part I 
Executive Member: Councillor  Perkins 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENT CONSULTATION FORUM – 2 October 2017 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE) 
 
Mixed Use Redevelopment of site for residential, commercial, leisure and other uses 
and public open space. To include partial demolition and refurbishment of the listed 
buildings. 
 
FORMER SHREDDED WHEAT FACTORY, BROADWATER ROAD, WELWYN 
GARDEN CITY, AL8 6UN 
 
APPLICANT: Plutus Estates Ltd 
 

(Peartree) 
 
1. Executive Summary 
 
1.1 This is a report to brief members in preparation for the Development Consultation 

Forum for the redevelopment of the former Shredded Wheat Factory site. 
 
2. Background 
 
2.1 Members will be aware that outline planning permission (Ref: N6/2015/0294/PP) 

was granted earlier this year for a mixed use development at this site of up to 850 
Class C3 new dwellings, partial demolition, repair, restoration, extension and 
conversion of the listed buildings of the former Shredded Wheat factory complex 
and a range of new uses across two phases of development, including Class C1 
boutique/budget hotel, Class B1(a) offices, a Class A4 pub/bar, a Class D1 
crèche and a Class D2 gym/dance/exercise studio, Class C2 (and/or C3 assisted 
living units), Class A1 retail, Class A3/A4 restaurants/cafés/bars/pubs, Class D1 
community use and healthcare and Class D2 gym/dance/exercise studio 
floorspace. Provision of external space for leisure and recreation to include a 
linear park, external games/play area, allotments and a skate park. 

2.2 The application considered earlier in the year raised a number of complex and 
competing planning considerations including, but not limited to, the proportion of 
affordable housing, development viability, conservation of the listed buildings, 
high quality design and layout, community facilities, infrastructure provision and 
car parking. 

2.2 The application site is identified in both the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005 
and the Proposed Submission Local Plan, which is currently undergoing 
examination. In both cases, the site is identified for mixed use redevelopment 
comprising primarily employment, housing, leisure and rail related uses. It should 
be noted that the site identified in both the current and emerging plans covers a 
wider area than that which is subject to this Development Consultation Forum. 

2.3 Since the permitted scheme was considered by the Development Management 
Committee in March 2017, the site has been sold and the new owners of the site 
wish to engage in pre—application discussions with the Council on an amended 
scheme. The Development Consultation Forum event comes at the start of the 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



applicant’s pre-application engagement with the Council and so officers have not, 
at this stage, provided any detailed feedback on the proposals to the applicant. 

2.4 This Development Consultation Forum for the development: 

 Enables Councillors to obtain more information and understanding about 
proposed scheme before a formal planning application is submitted. 

 Does not bind members or the Council to a decision on a planning 
application (as not all information will be to hand and if consultations have 
been carried out these won’t have been received or finalised). 

 Avoids members getting drawn into negotiations or debate on the merits of 
the proposed scheme but allows members to use the Forum as a fact 
finding exercise to ask questions and identify major planning issues. 

3. Site Description 
 
3.1 The  site is located to the east of Welwyn Garden City town centre in the Peartree 

ward. The red line application site boundary, which includes areas of public 
highway on Bridge Road, Broadwater Road and Bessemer Road, covers an area 
of approximately 12.7 hectares. The site forms part of the wider Broadwater Road 
West development site, an area allocated for mixed use development in the 
Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005 and is subject of the Broadwater Road West 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 2008. The main development site, 
excluding the areas of public highway on Broadwater Road, Bridge Road and 
Bessemer Road, is bounded on the eastern side by Broadwater Road (A1000), to 
the south by the Taylor Wimpey housing development and the Bio Park building, 
the Pall Mall distribution building and the East Coast Mainline to the west and 
Bridge Road/Hunters Bridge to the north.  The application site is split in two by 
Hydeway which runs east-west across the site and provides a pedestrian and 
vehicular link to the train station over-bridge, and on to the town centre, for the 
eastern half of the town.  

3.2  The site itself is largely cleared of structures with the exception of the former 
Shredded Wheat factory buildings, including the silos, to the north of Hydeway 
and the former Polycell building immediately to the south of Hydeway. The 
remaining buildings on site are vacant and in an increasing state of disrepair. It is 
noted that some of the Shredded Wheat factory buildings date back to 1925 and 
are Grade II listed. Access to the Pall Mall distribution premises to the south west 
was previously achieved by crossing the application site. However, planning 
permission was granted in 2013 (N6/2013/2305/MA) for this access road to be re-
aligned around the perimeter of the site. This road is also utilised by Network Rail 
for access to the railway lines. 

4. The Proposal 
 

4.1     The proposed development is located within the settlement of Welwyn 
Garden   City as designated on the proposals map of the Welwyn Hatfield District 
Plan 2005. 
 
The applicant has provided the following summary of their revised proposals: 
 To bring forward an amended proposal for Broadwater Road that remains true to 
the Garden City principles which underpinned the consented scheme, but delivers 
a development that better reflects the unique advantages of the location in terms 

Page 10



of sustainability, a better place-making scheme that will establish a new art and 
culture quarter for the District and a denser scheme that maximises the amount of 
affordable housing.  

 
 Summary of Main Changes: 
 

 South Site  
o Retention of residential blocks in same approximate locations as south site 

masterplan and within same height parameters 
 

o Removal of residential block in southeastern corner of south site to create 
a public square against the listed building. 
 

o More efficient and buildable residential blocks to increase south site 
dwelling yield including significant contribution to overall affordable housing 
provision across the site in accordance with policy (i.e. 30%) 
 

 North Site 
o An enhanced community core within the heart of the development to 

create increased public performance space, art destination, museum and 
conference centre  
 

o Amplification of employment strategy for the site through introduction of 
modern business space within Listed Building to provide focus for small 
and new start-up businesses 
 

o Removal of Hotel use 
 

o Reworking of design strategy to the north, west and east of the Listed 
Building in the north site to optimise the development potential of the site, 
whilst creating a more appropriate design response to the Listed Building, 
elevating residential yield through the following ways: 
 

 New residential block to the north of Listed Building 
 Enhanced focus given to front (eastern elevation) of Listed Building 

through enhanced boulevard and landscape setting 
 Densification of townhouse areas into apartment blocks, consistent 

with the predominant and defining urban form to the east of the 
Listed Building 

 
Increase in parking provision across the site and an increase in cycling provision 
and the provision of electric car club vehicles for residents, commensurate 
parking provision for commercial and community development floorspace though 
a decrease in the parking ratio per dwelling to circa 0.7 spaces per dwelling. 

 
 
5. Planning History 
 
5.1  N6/2015/0294/PP – Planning permission granted for Outline planning permission 

for part demolition, repair, restoration, extension and conversion of the former 
Shredded Wheat factory complex to include demolition of all buildings and 
structures except the original 1920's silos, production hall, grain store and boiler 
house. Refurbishment and change of use of the retained listed buildings to 
provide 2 Class C3 residential units, a Class C1 boutique/budget hotel, Class 

Page 11



B1(a) offices, a Class A4 pub/bar, a Class D1 crèche and a Class D2 
gym/dance/exercise studio. Erection of up to 850 Class C3 dwellings to potentially 
include up to 80 Class C2 (and/or C3 assisted living units), Class A1 retail, Class 
A3/A4 restaurants/cafés/bars/pubs, Class D1 community use and healthcare and 
Class D2 gym/dance/exercise studio floorspace. Provision of external space for 
leisure and recreation to include a linear park, external games/play area, 
allotments and a skate park. Creation of internal estate roads, paths, vehicle and 
cycle parking. Associated highway works comprising the widening of footways 
and the provision of cycle ways to Broadwater Road and Bridge Road, works to 
Hyde Way, junction remodelling works and the erection of a new footbridge from 
Bridge Road. Phase 1 (Blocks 2,3,4,5,6 & 7 on land to the north and west of Hyde 
Way and northern part of Block 1) – Includes Appearance, Means of Access, 
Landscaping, Layout and Scale in addition to all associated highway works . 
Phase 2 (Blocks 8,9,10,11 & 12 and southern part of Block 1 on land to the south 
of Hyde Way) – Includes Means of Access with Layout, Scale, Appearance and 
Landscaping reserved. 

  
6. Policy Implications 
 

6.1 The main planning policies that officers consider are relevant to the proposals 
are set out below. 

 
National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (NPPF) 
 
1: Building a strong, competitive economy 

4: Promoting sustainable transport 

6: Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes 

7: Requiring good design 

8: Promoting healthy communities 

9: Protecting Green Belt land 

10: Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding, and coastal change 

11: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
 

  PPS10: Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 

Hertfordshire County Council Waste Core Strategy (November 2012) 
 
Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005 
 
Welwyn Hatfield Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission 2016 
 
Broadwater Road West Supplementary Planning Document, December 2008 
 
Supplementary Design Guidance, February 2005  

Supplementary Planning Guidance, Parking Standards, January 2004 

Interim Policy for Car Parking Standards and Garage Sizes, August 2014 

Page 12



Planning Obligations, Supplementary Planning Document, February 2012 

7. Main Issues 
 
7.1 The main planning issues in connection with the scheme are anticipated to be: 
 

 The impact on the residential amenity of the existing properties and 
proposed occupiers; and 

 The impact on the Listed Building  

 The overall design and layout of the development; 

 The quality of design and landscaping; 

 Transport, accessibility and car and cycle parking provision; 

 Environmental impacts and sustainability; 

 Affordable housing provision; 

 Infrastructure capacity; 

 The provision of a satisfactory completed and signed S106. 
 
Name of author Chris Carter 
Title Interim Development Management Service Manager 
Date 25 September 2017 
 

Page 13



 

 

 

Page 14


	Agenda
	2 DEVELOPMENT CONSULTATION FORUMS
	3 FORMER SHREDDED WHEAT FACTORY, BROADWATER ROAD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL8 6UN

